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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT Tel: +91 124 679 2000
Fax: +91 124 679 2012

TO THE MEMBERS OF SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Ind AS Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
{("the Company™), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2017, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for
the year then ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these IND AS financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial perfoermance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principtes generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards {(Ind AS)
prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind AS financial statements based on our audit.

In concluding our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing
standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the
Act and the Rules made thereunder.

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit invelves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the Ind AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant
to the Company's preparation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates
made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the Ind AS financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.
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Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given te us, and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on the financial statements referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March, 2017, and
its profit, total comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on
that date.

Other Matters

The comparative financial information of the Company for the transition date opening balance sheet as
at 1 April 2015 included in these Ind AS financial statements, are based on the statutory financial
statements prepared in accordance with the Companies {Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by
the predecessor auditor whose report for the year ended 31 March 2015 dated 25 May, 2015 expressed
an unmodified opinion on those financial statements, and have been restated to comply with Ind AS,
Adjustiments made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance with the
Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us,

Our opinion on the financial statements and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below
is not modified in respect of these matters.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books,

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the
Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March, 2017
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March,
2017 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
"Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements - Refer note 40 (a) to the Ind AS financial statements;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses - Refer note 40 (b) to the IND AS
financial statements.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company - Refer note 40 (¢) to the IND AS financial
statements.
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v, The Company has provided requisite disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements as
regards its holding and dealings in Specified Bank Notes as defined in the Notification $.0.
3407(E) dated the 8 November, 2016 of the Ministry of Finance, during the period from 8
November 2016 to 30 December 2016, However, as stated in note 47 to the IND AS
financial statements, the Management have received amount aggregating to Rs. 68.23
lacs from transactions which are not permitted. Based on audit procedures performed and
the representations provided to us by the management we report that the disclosures are
in accordance with the books of account maintained by the Company and as produced to
us by the Management - Refer note 47 to the Ind AS financial statements,

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”} issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure B” a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018

p—
Gurugram RASHIM TANDON
30 May 2017 Partner

RT/IB/2017 Membership No. 095540
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ANNEXURE “"A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
{Referred to in paragraph 1{f)} under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section
of our report of even date}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3
of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
{"the Company”) as of 31 March, 2017 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were cperating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accerdance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to cbtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of internal financial controls
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectivenass of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over
financial reperting includes those policies and procedures that (1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the paolicies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according te the explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31 March, 2017, based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm’s Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018
--""""--

Gurugram RASHIM TANDON

30 May 2017 Partner
RT/IB/2017 Membership No. 095540
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report

of even date)

()

(i)

(iii}

(iv})

)

(vi)

(vii)

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets were physically verified during the year by the Management in accordance
with a regular programme of verification which, in cur opinion, provides for physical
verification of all the fixed assets at reasonable intervels. According to the information and
explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

{c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records examined by us
and based on the examination of the title deeds provided to us, we report that, the title
deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and buildings which are freehold,
are hetd in the name of the Company as at the Balance Sheet date.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the Management at
reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted loans, secured
or unsecured, to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013, in respect of which:

(a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b) The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per
stipulations.

() There is no overdue amount remaining outstanding as at the Balance Sheet date.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of grant
of loans. The Company has not made investments or provided guarantees and securities.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any
deposits under the provisions of Section 73 to Section 76 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the
year. Hence, the provisions of clause (v) of the CARO 2016 are not applicable to the Company.

The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under section 148(1)
of the Companies Act, 2013 (health services, namely functioning as diagnostic centres, clinical
centres or test laboratories). We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
pursuant to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013, and are of
the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and maintained. We have,
however, not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate or complete.

According to the informatien and explanations given to us in respect of statutory dues:

{a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs
Duty, Valued Added Tax, Prefessional Tax and Cess applicable to it with the appropriate
authorities and there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these dues for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

We are informed that the operations of the Company during the period does not give rise to
any liability for Excise duty.
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(b}

We are informed that there are no dues in respect of Sales Tax, Service Tax, Customs Duty
and Value Added Tax as on 31 March 2017 which have not been deposited on account of
disputes, Details of dues of income tax which have not been deposited as on 31 March, 2017

on account of disputes are given below:

Name of Nature of Forum where | Period to which | Amount (Rs.
Statute Dues dispute is the Amount in lacs)
pending Relates -
Income Tax Income Tax Commissioner | AY 2014-15 1,760.33
Act of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Mumbai

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings to banks. The Company has not taken any loans
or borrowings from financial institution and government or has not issued any debentures.

(viii)

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including
debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause (ix) of the CARO 2016 Order is
not applicable.

(x) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its officers or employees has been
noticed or reported during the year,

(xt) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid
/ provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the CARO 2016
Order is not applicable.

(xii)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the Company is in
compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013, where applicable, for all
transactions with the related parties and the details of related party transactions have been disclosed
in the Ind AS financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

(xiii)

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under clause (xiv) of CARQ
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during the year the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or directors of its holding,
subsidiary or associate company or persons connected with them and hence provisions of section
192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

(xv)

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934,

{xvi)

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm's Registration No.: 117366W/W-100018

—

RASHIM TANDON

Partner
Membership No. 095540

Gurugram

30 May 2017
RT/)B/2017




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH, 2017

Particulars

A ASSETS
1 Non-current agsets

(a) Property, plant and equipment

{b) Capital work-in-progress
{cY Goodwill
{d) Other intangible assets

{e} Intanaible assets under development

{f} Financial Assets

(i Investments in joint ventures

{ii} Loans
{iily Other flnancial assets
{a) Deferred tax assets (net)
(hY Other non-current assets
Total non - current assets

2 Current assets

fal Inventories
(b} Financial assets
{iY Trade receivables
(il Cash and cash equivalents
(ili} Loans
{iv) Other financial assets
{cY Other current assets

Total current assets
Total assets (1+2)

B EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
1 EQUITY

fa} Eauity share capital
{b} Other eauity
Total equity

LIABILITIES
2 Non-current liabilities

{a) Financial liabilities

(1) Borrowinas

(i} Other Financial liabilities
b} Provisions
(¢} Other nen-current liabilities

Total non-current liabilities
3  Current liabilities

fa) Financial liabliities

{i} Borrowings

(it} Trade pavables

(iii} Other financlal liabilities
(b} Provisions
(2) Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities

Total liabilities {2+3}
Total equity and liabilities {1+2+3)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Charterad Accountants

a—

RASHIM TANDON
Partrer
Membership No, 095540

Gurugram
30 May, 2017

Note No As at As at As at
. 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
{Rupees in lacs) {Rupees in lacs) {Rupees in lacs)

5 4,408.38 5,724.79 7,375.32
5 4.55 7.25 55.00
6 1,167.52 1.167.52 1.776.93
6 4.257.62 4,937.75 4,463.79
6 43.74 164.36 2
7 1,175.88 1,175,888 1,175.88
8 17,59 6.78 13.97
9 £541.71 473,52 535.95
10 1,034.56 232.19 239.23
11 1,667.12 1.,744.85 2,506,149
14,318,67 15,634.89 18.542.26

12 637.02 686.53 648,45
13 1,192.76 1.128.57 1,251.98
14 1.010.81 1.259.20 1,016.68
15 1,900.00 - -
16 312.06 154.30 123.76
17 98.8% 170,74 137.24
5,201.54 3,399.34 3.178.11

— 1852021 3503423 2172037

18 395.82 395.82 395.82
19 {2.069.21) {5,062 50 {4,387 .48}
{1.673.39) {4,666.68) (3,991.66)
20 16,200.00 18,800.0¢ 18.854.16
21 1,399.12 1.524.06 1,661,79
22 20381 194.65 182.39
23 132.52 160.34 181.09
17.935.75 20,679.05 20,879.43
24 - 57.10 -
25 1,392.00 1.513.65% 1,713.16
26 1.443,51 1.022.96 2,263.90
27 239,85 222.42 171.46
258 182.49 205.73 684,08
3,257.85 3,021.86 4,832.60
21.193.60 23,700.91 25,712.03
19.520.21 19.034.23 21,720.37

1-51

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

. '
KALYANA SUNDARAM SRIVASTAVA

Director
DIN: 07322325

Guruaram
29 May, 2017

.
ARINGAM HALDAR
Director

DIN: 07714950




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

Particulars

I PRevenue from pperations
II  Other incoms

III Total Income {I + II}

1Y EXPENSES

(a) Cost of materials consumed
{b} Cost of tests outsourced
(c) Emplovee beneflts expense
(dy Other expenses
{2) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(F) Finance costs
(a) Exceptional Items

Total expenses (IV)

V  Proflt/{loss) before tax {III-IV)

V1 Tax Expense
(1} Current tax
(27 MAT credit
{31 Deferred tax credit
Total tax expense

VII Profit/(loss) for the period (V-VI})

Other comprehensive income

A (i) [tems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurements of the defined benefit plans

(i) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

VIII Total other comprehensive income (A (i+ii))

IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII)

Earnings per equity share:
(1} Basic (in Rs.)
(2) Diluted {in Rs.)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(o

Partner
Membership No. 095540

Guruaram
30 May, 2017

Note No Year ended Year ended
L 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016
(Rupees in lacs) (Rupees in lacs}
29 27.68B2.67 27.,051.53
30 710.02 349,94
28,392.69 27,401.47
31 5.653.52 5.495 .44
849.89 299.09
32 4,230.85 4,042.24
33 10,155.73 10,3892.86
34 2.089.78 3,462.89
35 2.483.43 2,876.10
36 - 1,098.34
25,463.20 28,066.96
2,929.49 {665.49)
37 707.34 -
37 (397.92)
37 {391.77) -
(21.85) -
3,011,349 {665.49)
44 (27.62) (9.53)
{27.62) {9.53)
44 9.56 -
{18.06) {9.53)
2,993.28 (675.02)
28 76,08 (16.78)
38 76.08 (16.78)
1-51

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

-
@ ‘*uf.la.w
KALYANA SUNDARAM SRIVASTAVA

Director
DIN: 07322325

Gurugram
29 May, 2017

" T

Am;m

Director
DIN: 07714950



Particulars

I. Cash ﬂojws from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax

Adjustments for;

Depreclation/ amortisation

Interest Income earned on bank deposits

Interest Income earned on Inter-corporate deposits
Interest Income earned on income tax refund
Interest income earned on financlal assets

Dividend income from equity instruments

Profit on fixed assets sold/ discarded (net)
Liabilities/ provislons no longer required written back
Remeasyrement of defined benefit plans

Provision for doubtful debts and advances

Bad debts and advances written off

FInance costs

Reversal of rent equalisation reserve

Operating profit/ (loss) before working capital changes

Movemants in working capftal;

{Increase)/ decrease In loans

(Increase)/ decrease In other financial assets
(Increase)/ decrease in inventorles
{Increase)/ decrease In trade recelvables
(Increase)/ decrease In other current assets
Increasef {decrease} In provisions |
Increase/ {decrease) In trade payables
Increasef (decrease) In other financlal llabllitles
Increase/ (decrease) in other current llabilities
Cash ganerated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net Cash flow from operating activities

I1. Cash flows from Investing activities
Cividend, income from equlty Instruments
Loans to Inter-corporate deposits
Interest received on Inter-corporate deposits
Balances held with bank as margin money
Interest received on fixed deposits ;-
Payments for property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash flow from/ (used in) investing activities

IIL. Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from bcrrowings
Repayment of berrowings
Interest paid )
Net cash flow fram/ {(used in) financing activitles

IV. Net increase in cash and cash eqplvalents [I+II+III)
V. Cash & cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

VI Cash & cash equivalents at the end of the year [IV+V]

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

In terms of our report attached

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

' —
4‘?“?‘1} VA
RASHIM TANDON

Partner .
Membership No. 095540

Gurugram
30 May, 2017

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

Note No.

14

1-51

Year anded
31 March, 2017

Year ended
31 March, 2016

2,929.49 (665.49)
2,089.78 4,163.55
(52.89) (64.18)
(148.12) .
(78.57) (36.85)
(3.65) (3.92)
(150.00) (100.00)
(29.34) 318,39
(1172.38) (23.23)
(27.62) (9.53)
164.52 138.50
6,42 27.07
2,410.64 2,806.06
{16.69} {30.08}
6,976.59 6,520.20
(10.81) 7.19
(150.86) 13.95
(0.49) (38.08)
(126.35) (2.67)
71.85" (33.50)
63.74 53,69
50.81 (279.27)
2.02 8.77
(34.07) {349.02)
6,842.43 5,001.35
{971.04) {138.88)
5,871.39 5,762.47
150.00 100.00
(1,500.00) -
96,30 -
(1.12) 0.37
53.02 64.61
(578.97) (2,114.70)
473.76 329.20
(1,707.01) (1,620.52)
1,500.00 1,907.10
(3,672.43) {3,181.65)
(2,240.34) {2,624.88)
(4,412,773 (3,899.43)
(248.39) 242.52
1,259.20 1,016.68
1,010,81 1,259.20

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

c

%m\a,v\ .
KALYANA SUNDARAM SRIVASTAVA ARINDAM HALDAR *
Diractor Director

DIN: 07322325 DIN: 07714950

Gurugram
29 May, 2017




STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars

Issued and Paid up Capital at 1 April 2015
Channes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at 31 March 2016

Changes in eauity share capital during the vear
Balance at 31 March 2017

OTHER EQUITY
Particulars

Retained earninas

Balance as at 1 April 2015

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income {nat of incorme tax}
Total comprehensive income for the vear
Balance as at 21 March 2016

Profit Far the vear

Cther comprehensive income (net of incormne tax)
Total comprehensive income for the vear

Balance as at 31 March 2017

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

See accompanvinag notes to the financial statements

In terms of cur report attached

FOR DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

N>

RASHIM TANDON
Partner
Membership Mo, 095540

Gurugram
30 Mav, 2017

Amount
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3.2

3.3

General information

SRL Diagnostics Private Limited (‘the Company') is a private limited Company and incorporated in India. The Company |s engaged in the
business of malntaining and managing clinical reference laboratories, to provide testing and diagnostics on human beaings, in the flald of both
patholoay and radicloay.

application of new and revised Ind ASs

On 16 February 2015, the Ministry of Corporate Affalrs ("MCA™ notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The rules
specify the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS}) applicable to certain class of compani2s and set out dates of applicability. SRL Diagnostics
Frivate Limlted, being subsidiary of SRL Limited, from whom Ind AS is applicable from April 1, 2016 as defined In the said notification, is
required to apply the standards as specified in Companies {Indian Accounting Standards} Rules 2015 and accordingly the Cornpany has adopted
Ind AS from April 1, 2016 with transition dates as April 1, 2015.

As at the date of autharisation of the financial statements, the Company has not applied the following revisions to the [nd AS that have been
issued by MCA but are not yet effective:

Ind AS 102 {(Amendment) Measurement of cash settled awards, meodification of cash settled awards and equity settled
awards that includes a ‘net settlement’ feature
Ind A5 7 {Amendment) Disclosure of changes In liabilities on account of financing activities,

The directors of the Company do not expect that the adoption of the amendments to the standards will have an Impact on the financial
statements of the Company.

Significant accounting policies
Statement of compliance

The financial statemeants of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Ind ASs notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015,

Upto the year ended 31 March, 2016, the Company prepared its flnancial statements in accordance with the requirements of previous GAAP,
which Includes Standards notifled under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, These are the Company's first Ind AS financial
statements. The date of transition to Ind AS is 1 Aprit, 2015. Refer Note 3.7 for the detaills of first-time adoption exemptions availed by the
Company.

Basis of preparation and presentation

The financial statements have been preparad an the historical cost basis except for certain financlal instruments that are measured at fafr values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policles below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liabllity In an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique, In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into acocount when pricing the asset or liabllity at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/ or
disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share based payment that are within the scope of
Ind A5 102, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 17, and measurements that have some similarities to falr value but are not
fair value, such as nat realisable value in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36,

In addition, for financlal reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,2 or 3 based on the degree to which the
inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the falr value measurement in its entirety, which are
describad as follows:

» Level 1 Inputs are quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for Identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement

date;
+ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, elther directly or

indirectly;
+ Level 3 Inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liabllity,

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipments are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and the cost cormnprises the purchase price and any
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

Subseguent expenditure related ko an item of property, plant and equipment is added to its book value only if it increases the future benefits
from the existing assst beyond its previcusly assessed standard of performance. All other expenses including day-to-day repair and
maintenance expenditure and cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and less for the period during which such expenses
are incurred.

Freehold Jand |s not depreciated.

Depreclation has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013 except in
respect of the following categones of assets, in whose case the life of the assets has been assessed as under taking into account the nature of
the asset, the estimated usage of the asset and the gperating conditions of the asset.
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3.5

SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017
Particulars Years
Books 13 years

Plant and 2quipment

- Laboratory equipment- Imaging-PET 7 years

- Laboratory equipment- Pathology 13 years

- Laboratory equipment- Imaging other than FET 10 years
Air conditioners 3 years
Buildings &0 years
Computers 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Office equiprnent 5 years
Wehicleg 6 ko 8 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the pericd of the lease or 5 years which is the expected useful Ife, whichever is shorter.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continuad use of assets. Any gain or 10ss arising on the disposal or retirernent of an itern of property, plant, equipment is determinad as the
differance between the sales proceeds and carrylng amount of the asset and Is recognised in profit and loss.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its propert, plant and equipment recognised as of 1
April, 2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Intangible assets

ngibl i i I
Intangible assets with finlte useful llves that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulsted
impairment losses. Amortisation is recogrised on a stralght line basls over their estimated useful lives, The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a
prospective basks. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment
lasses.
Goodwill;
The cost of goodwill acquired in the nature of purchase |s carried at cost. The goodwlll |s not amortised and tested for impairment annually or
more frequently when there is indication that it may be impaired.

Software:
Acquired computer software and licenses are capitalized on the basis of costs incurred to acquire and bring the speclfic software to its Intended

use, These costs are amortised over a perlod of thres years being the useful life as estimated by the management.

Trademark:

The ¢ost of trademark acquired in the naturg of purchase is thelr fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, trademarks
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisatlon and accumulated impalrment losses, if any,

Trademarks are armortised on a straight line basis over the estimated useful economic life. The Company uses a rebuttable presurmption that the
useful life of an intangible assat will not exceed ten years from the date when the asset is avallable for use or the primary pericd of the businass
acquisition agreement, whichever is lass, Such traderarks are tested for impairment annually, elther individually or at the cash-generating unit
lavel,

Gains or losses arlsing from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the Staternant of Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognized,

Deemned cost on transition to Ind AS:
For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets recognised as of 1 April, 2015
(transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that camrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets to detemming whether there
is an indicatlon that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated In order to determine the extent of the impairment loss {if any).

[ntangible assats with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are testing for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset may be Impaired.

The recoverable armount 15 the higher of falr value less cost of disposal and value in use. 1n assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using 2 pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific ko the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable armort of an asset (or cash-generating unit} is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
(or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impaimnent loss is recognised immediately In profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of asset {or a cash-generating unit) is Increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amount, but so that the Increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrylng amount that would have been determined
had no Impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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3.6

7.1

Inventories

Inventorles consist of reagents, chemnicals and consumables are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined on moving
weighted average basls, However, materials and other [tems held for use in the performing of clinical tests are not written down below cost, if
the tests in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimatad costs necessary to make the sale.

Financlal Instruments

Flnancial assets and financial liabilitles are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial assets and financial liabllities at fair value through profit or loss) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or finandial liabllities, as appropriate, on inltial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financlal assets or financlal labilitles at fair value through profit or loss are recognised Immediately In profit or
loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of flnanclal assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis, Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention n the market
place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequentiy measured In thelr entirety at either amortised cost or falr value, depending on the classification
of the flnanclal assets.

Classificatlon of flnancial assets

Financial Instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortised cost {except for financial assets that are
designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition):

the asset is hald within a business model whose objective is to hold assets In order to collact contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on specifled dates to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and interest on the

princlpal amounk gukstanding.,
Financial instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at faie value through other comprehensive income (except

for financial assets that are designated as at falr value through profit or 1oss on initial recognition):
the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financlal assets; and

the contractual terms of the instrument give rise on speclfied dates to cash flows that are solely payrents of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.
All other financial assats are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYTFL).

Effective interest rmethod

The effactive interest method s a method of calculating the amortisad cost of 3 financial instrument and of allocating interest income gver the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {including all fees, transaction costs
and other premiums or dlscounts that form an integral part of the effective interest rate) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interast basis for financial instruments other than those financlal assets classified as at Fair Value Through
Profit and Loss. Interest incormne s recognised in profit or loss and is included in the "Other income” line item.

Financial instruments that do not mest the amortised cost criterla or fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI) are measured at
fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL}.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or lpss (FYTPL)

A financlal asset that meets the amortised cost criteria or debt instruments that meet the FVTOCT criteria may be designated as at FYTPL upon
initial recognition if such designation ellminatas or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would arise from
measuring assets or flabilities or recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases, The Company has not deslgnated any debt
instrurnent as at FYTPL.

Financlal assets at FYTPL are measured at falr value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurermnent
recognised in proflt or [9ss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset
and is included in the ‘Other income’ line item. Dividend on financial assets at FVTPL is recognised when the Company's right to receive the
dividends is established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will low to the entlty, the dividend does not
represent a recovery of part of cost of the investment and the amount of dividend can be measured reliably.

i nt of
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impalrment loss on financials assets measured at amortised cost, lease
receivables, trade racelvables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial asset and financial guranatees not designaked as at
FVYTPL.
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3.7.2

Expected credit losses are the welghted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the weights, Credit loss is the
difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive (e, all cash shortfalls), discounted at the orlginal effective nterast (or credit-adjusted affective Interest rate for
purchased or originated credit-impalred flnanclal assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the flnanclal
Instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses if the credit risk
on that financlal Instrument has increased significantly, since Initial recognition, IF the credit risk on a financlal instrument has not Increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures the toss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses. 12-month expected credit iosses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash
shortfalls that will result if defalut occurs within the 12 months after the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalis that are predicted over
the next 12 months,

If the Company measurad lgss allowance for a financial instrument at lifetime expected credit logs model in the previous perlod, but determines
at the end of a reporting period that the credit risk has not increased significantly since Initial recognition due to improvement in credit quality
as comparad to the previous period, the Company again measures the loss allowance based on 12-month expected credit losses,

When making the assessment of whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Company uses the
change in the risk of a default occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument Instead of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses. To make that assessment, the Company compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial Instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of & default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recegnitlon and considers reasonable and supportable
information, that |s available without undue cost of effort, that |s indicative of significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition.

For trade receivables or any contractual right to recelve cash or another financial asset that result from transactions that are within the scope of
Ind AS 18, the Company always measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company has used a practical expedient as
permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes Into account historical
credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking informatfon.

The impairment requirements for the recognition and measurement of a loss allowance are equally applied to financial instruments at FYTOCI
excepl that loss allowance Is recognised In other comprehensive income and Is nol reduced from the carrying amgount In the Balance Sheet.

il I
The Company derecognises a financlal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party, If the Company nelther transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an asscoiated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to recognise the flnandal asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing
for the proceeds received,
On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and recelvable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and aocumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognlsed in profit or [oss on disposal of that financial asset,

On derecognition of a financial asset other than In its entirety {e.g. when the Company retains an opticn to repurchase part of a transferred
asset), the Company allocates the previous carrying amount of the financlal asset betweaen the part It continues to recognise under continuing
involvement, and the part it no longer recognises on the basis of the relative falr values of those parts on the date of the transfer, The
difference between the carrying amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the sum of the consideration received for the part
no longer recognised and any cumulative gain or [pss allocated o it that had been recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in
profit or loss if such gain or loss would have otherwise been recognised in profit or loss on disposal of that financlal asset. A cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive incorme is alocated between the part that continues to be recognised and the part that is
no langer recegnised on the basls of the relative Fair values of those parts.

Financial liabllities
All financizl liabilitles are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method or at FYTPL. However, financial liabilities

that arlse when a transfer of a financial asset does not qualify for derecognition or whan the continuing involvement approach applies, financial
gugrantee contracts issued by the Company rate are measurad in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below:

Financlal liabilities at FYTPL
Flnanclal liabilities at FVTPL are stated at falr value, with any gain or losses arisingon remeasurament recognised In profit or loss, The net gain
or |0ss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any interest pald on the financial llabllity and is included in the 'Other Income’ line (tem.

Financial lsbilities subsequently measured at amortised cost )
The carrying amounts of financlal liabilities that are subseguently measured at amortised cost are determined based on the effective interest

methad. Interest expense that Is not capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included in the 'Finance costs’ line item.

The effective interest method is @8 method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial Nability and of allocating interest expense ovear the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and polnts paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective intarest rate, transaction costs and other premium or discounts) through the expected lifa
of the financial liability, ko the net carrying amount on Initial recognition,
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(a)

{a)

(b}

ic)

3.9

3.10

Financlal quarantee contracts
A financial guarantee contract s a contract that raquires the Issuer to make specified payments to relmburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due in accordance with the terms of a debt Instrument.

Flnancial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are Initlally measurad at their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

+ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 109; and
» the amount initially reccgnised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind
AS 18,

mmil vide a loa below-market interest ra
Commitments to provide a loan at a below-markel interest rate are initlally measuerad at their falr values and, if not designated as at FYTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of:

+ the amount of loss allowance determined in accordance with impairment requirerents of Ind AS 109; and
« the amount [nitially recognised less, when appropriate, the curmnulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the principles of Ind
AS 18.

Foreian exchange qains and lgsses
For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at the end of each reporting pericd, the
foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the amortised cost of the instruments and are recognised in ‘Other income’.

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency 15 determined in that foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at
the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are measured as at FYTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair
value gains or losses and is recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Corpany derecognises financial liabillties when, ard only when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. An

exchange between with 3 lender of debt instruments with substantially different terms is accounted for as an extinguishrnant of the original
financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability, Simllarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability
{whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor) is accounted for as an extinguishrment of the orlginal financial liability and
the recognition of a new financial llability. The difference between the carrying amount of the financlal llability derecognised and the
consideration paid and pavable s recoanised in profit or loss.

Flrst-time adoption - mandatory exceptions, optional exemptions

The Company has prepared the opening Balance Sheet as per IND AS as of 1 April, 2015 (the transitlon date} by receqnising all assets and
llabilitles whose recognition is required by IND AS, not recognising Items of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by
reclassifying items from previous GAAP to IND AS as required under IND AS, and applying IND AS in measurement of recognised assets and
llabilities, However, this principle fs subject to the certain exception and certain optional exemptlons availed by the Company as detailed below:

Exceptions:

Impalrment of flnancial assets
The Company has applied the impairment requirernents of Ind AS 109 retrospectively.

Optional exemptions:
Deemed cost for property, plant and equlp t and intangible assets

The Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its plant and equipment and intangible assets recognised as of 1 April,
2015 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrving value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

Investments In jolnt ventures
The Comipany has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its investment in joint venture as deemed cost as on the date of transition
to ING AS.

Datermining whether an arrang t contains a lease
The Company has applied Appendix C of Ind AS 17 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease to determine whether an

arrangement existing at the transition date contains a lease on the basis of facts and clrcumstances existing at that date.

Cash and cash equivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement)

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
menths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible inke known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value,

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, wharaby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature, any
deferrals or accryals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments and items of Income or expense associated with investing or
financing cash flows. The cash flows from operating, Investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated based on the avallable
information.
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3.12

3.13

3.14

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the conslderation recelved or receivable. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the econornic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be rellably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must also
be met before revenue is recoanized:

The Company assessed its revenue arrangements against specific criterla to determine it is acting as principal or agent. The Company has
concluded that It |3 acting as a principal in all its revenue arrangements.

Income from services

Medical testing charges consists of fees received for varlous tests conducted in the field of pathology and radlology and are recognized on
accrual basis when the reports are generated and released, net of discounts, If any.

Management fees

Revenue frorn management fees is recognised on an accrual basglg, in accordance with the terms of the relevant agreements, as and when
services are rendered.

Dividend and interest Income

Dividend Income from Investment is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive payment has been established (provided that it is
probable that the economic benefits will fiow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably),

Interest income from the financlal assets is recognised when it 1s probable that the economic benefits will Flow to the Company and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest incorne is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstandlng and at the effective
Interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimatad futurs cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to
that asset’'s net carrying amount on intial recognition.

Forelgn currency transactions and translations

Initial recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies entered into by the Company are accounted at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction or

at rates that closely approximate the rate at the date of the transaction,

Measurement at the Balance Sheet date

At the end of each reporting perlod, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rakes prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in & foreign currency are not retranslated.

Treatment of Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement / restatement of foreign currency monetary items of the Company are recognised as income or

expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period In which they artse.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture Is a jofnt arrangement whereby the parttes that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of the jolnt
arrangement, loint control Is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangemant, which exlsts only when decisions about the relevant
activities require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to apply previous GAAP carrying amount of its investment in joint venture as cost as on the
date of transition to IND AS,

Employea benefits

Retirement benefit cost and termination benefits

Payment to dafined cantribution retirernent benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions,

The Company operates a defined beneflt plan wviz., gratuity. For defined benefit retirernent beneflt plans, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting pericd,
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset cefling and the return on plan assets {excluding
net interest), is reflacted immediately jn the Balance Sheet with 3 charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income in the pericd in
which they occur, Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not
reclassified to proflt or loss. Past service cost is recognised in profit or less in the period of @ plan amendment. Met interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the peried to the net defined benefit liability or asset,

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits
A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in respeact of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the perigd tha related
service is rendared at the undiscount=d amount of the benefits expacted te be paid In exchange for that services.

Liakilitles recognised in respect of shork term employee beneflts are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to bea paid
in exchange for the related service. Accumulated leave, which is expecied to be utilized within the next 12 months, Is treated as short-term
ermployea benefit. The Cormpany measures the expected cost of such absences as the additlonal amount that it expects to pay as a result of the
unused entitlement that has accumuiated at the reperting date,

Liabilitias recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated future cash cutflows
expacted to be made by the Company in respect of services provided by employess upto the reporting date, The Company treats accumutated
leave expected to be carried forward beyond 12 months, as long-term employes benefit for measurement purposes. The Company presents the
leave as a current liability In the Balance Sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlemant for twebve months
after the reporting date,
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3.17

3.18

3.19

Defined benefit plan
Ratirermant berefit in the form of provident fund and employee state Inusrance is a defined contribution scheme, The Company has no other

obligations, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund and employee state insurance. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the schermne as an expenditure, when an employes renders the related service,

Borrowing costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for Its intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such Hme as the assets are
substantially ready for thelr intendad use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised In profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in the business of maintaining and managing clinical reference laboratories, to provide testing and dlagnostics on
hurnar beings, in the field of both pathology and radlology. As the Company's business activity primarily falls within a single business and
geographical segment |.e pathology and radlology servicas, there are no disclosures required to be provided in terms of Ind AS 108 an 'Segment
Reporting'.

Leases

Leases are classifled as flnance leases whenever the terms of the l2ase transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Operating leases
Where the Company is lessee

Rental expenses from operating leases s generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Where the rentals are
structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor's expected inflationary cost increases, such
increase are recognised In the year in which such benefits accrue. Contingent rentals arising under operating |eases are recognised as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share s computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after tax (Including the post tax effect of extraordinary iterns, if any) by the
welghted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss}
after tax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any)} as adjustad for dividend, interest and other charges to expanse or income
{net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the
net profit per share from continuing ordinary operations. Potential dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the baginning of the
period, unless they have been issued at & later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares
been actually issued at fair value (i.e. average market value of the putstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted for potentlal equity
shares as appropriate.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable 13 based on taxable profit for the year. The current tax |s calculaked using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting parod.

Minimurm aiternate tax (MAT) paid in & year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company recognizes MAT cradit
available as an asset only to the extent that there is convinclng evidence that the company will pay normal income [ax during the specified
period, i.e. the period for which MAT cradit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the company recognlzes MAT credit as an asset
In accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961,
the said asset is created by way of credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as "MAT Credit Entitiement.” The company reviews the
"MAT credit entitlement” asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing evidence
that it will pay normal tax during the specified period.

Deferred tax

Daferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabllities in the financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax llabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxabla
profits will be available against which those dedutable temporary diffrences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferrad tax assets Is reviewed at the end of each reporting pertod and reduced to the extent that is ne lenger probabie
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all ar part of assets to be recovared,

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liabilities is settled or the
asset realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
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3.20

3.21

3.22

3.23

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and daferred tax are recognised In profit or loss, except when they related to Items that are recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equiby, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognisad in other comprehensive Ingome or directly in equity
respectivaly,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company bas & present obligation {legal or constructive)} as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Company will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation,

Tha amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settie the present obligation at the 2nd of the
reporting perlod, taking inkte account the risks and uncertainties surrpunding the cbligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to sattle the present obligation, its carrylng amount is the present value of those cash flows (when the effect of the time value of
roney is material).

Contingent liabilltles

A contingent liability Is 3 possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nan-occurrence
of gne or more uncertatn future events beyond the control of the Company or 3 present obligation that s not recognized because it is not
probable that an cutflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where
thera is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize @ contingant lability but
dizclpses its existence in the financial statements.

Insurance clalms
Insurance claims are accountad for on the basis of clalims admitted / expected to be admitted and to the extent that the amount recoverable
can be measurad rellably and it is reasonable to expect ultimate collection.

Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of activities of the Compary and the normnal time between acquisitlon of assets and thelr realisation In cash or cash
equivalents, the Company has determinad its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of ¢lassification of its assats and liabllities as current
and non-current.
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4.1

4.1.1

4,2

4.2.1

Critical accounting judgements and kev sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabillties that are not
readily apparent from other sources, The estimates and associated asumptions are based on historical experience and
other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or In the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those involving estimations (see note 4.2) that the directors have
made in the process of applying the accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements.

Accounting of reagent rental equipments:

The Company has entered into agreements with certain suppliers for purchase of reagents / kits. As part of the
agreement, the Company has the right to use equipment supplied by the suppliers free of charge subject to purchase
of minimum committed quantities of reagents/ kits.

The cost of reagents which includes the cost of rental of the equipment is recorded as cost of materlal consumed. The
directors of the Company has assessed the conditions as specified in the Ind AS -17, "Leases" for determining whether
the said arrangement is under operating lease or Finance lease. Basis the evaluation, the arrangements have been
classified by the Company as composite lease, which can not be reliably segregated in opearting lease and finance
lease. Hence, the Company has recorded the purchase of reagent in consumption cost with no element of rental
finterest therein,

Kev sources of estimation uncertalnity

The following is the key assumption concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the
assets and liabilties within the next financial year.

Provision for doubtful debts

The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of trade and other
receivables. The identification of doubtful debts requires use of judgement and estimates. Where the expectation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables
and doubtful debts expenses in the period in which such estimate has been changed,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

NOTE 6 (a)t

NOTE 6 (b):

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

{(Rupnees in lacs)

Block Goodwill Softwares Trademarks Total Intangible
Assets under
development

Deemed cost

Ag at 1 April, 2015 1,776.93 62.57 4,401.22 4,463.79

Additlons - 6.82 1,415.22 1,426.04 164.36

Disposals - 0.44 - 0.44 -

As at 31 March, 2016 1,776.93 68.95 5,820.44 5,889.39 164.36

Additions - 120.81 37.76 158,57 -

Disposals/ capitalised - 1.72 - 1.72 120.62

As at 31 March, 2017 1,776.93 188.04 5,858.20 6,046.24 43.74

Accumulated amortisation and impairment

As at 1 April, 2015 - - - - -

Aamortisation expense/ write off (refer note 25} 609.41 42,91 a908.73 951.64 -

Disposals " - - - -

As at 31 March, 2016 509.41 42.91 908.73 951.64 -

Amaortisation expense - 17.50 819.91 837.41 -

Disposals » 0.43 - 0.43 -

Az at 31 March, 2017 609.41 59.98 1,728.64 1,788.62 -

Carrying amount

Asg at 1 April, 2015 {deemed cost) 1,776.93 62,57 4,401.22 4,463.79 =

As at 31 March, 2016 1,167.52 26.04 4,911.71 4,937.75 164.36

As at 31 March, 2017 1,167.52 128.06 4,129.56 4,257.62 43,74

MNote:

a) During the fnancial year ended 31 March, 2016, the Company closed certaln laboratories and sold Its laboratory eguipments pertaining to those
laboratories, which resulted in amortisation of goodwill and trademark aggregating Rupees in lacs 700.66 which has been shown as an exceptional item in

Statement of Profit and Loss. {refer Noke 36)

b) The Company has used deemed cost exemption under Ind AS 101 as on the date of transition to [nd AS. {refer note 3.8)

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS UNDER DEVELOPMENT

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 321 March 2018 1 April 2015
{Rupees in lacs} {Rupees in lacs) (Rupees in Jacs)

Net carrying amounts (net of accumulated
amortisation)

Goodwill 1,167.52 1,167.52 1,776.93
Softwares 128.06 26.04 62.57
Trademarks 4,129.56 4,911.71 4,401.22

5.425.14 £.105.27 §,240.72

= LT E O TT SatE S
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NOTE 7:

(@)

{0y

NOTE 8:

(a)

NOTE 9:

(@)
(b}
(€}

NOTE 10:

NON-CURRENT FINAMCIAL ASSETS
INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Particulars

Ungquoted investments (all fully paid}
Investrments in DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited

Measured at cost

Equity Instruments

250,000 {31 March 2016; 250,000 and 1 April 2015: 250,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each,
fully pald up .

Maasured at cost

Preference shares
2,250,000 (31 March 2016: 2,250,000 and 1 April 2015: 2,250,000) zero coupen
preference shares of Rs, 10 each, fully paid up

Total aggregate unguoted Investments
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments

LOANS (unsecured, considered good)
{at amortised cost)

Particulars

Loan to employees
Total

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (unsecured, considered good)
{at amortised cost)

Particulars

Security deposits
Balances with banks held as margin money (refer note {a) below)
Interest accrued on fixed deposits

Total

(Rupaeas in lacs)

As at
31 March, 2017

As at
31 March, 2016

As at
1 April, 2015

950.98 950,88 950.88
225.00 225,00 225.00
1,175.83 1,175.88 1,175.88
1,175.88 1,175.88 1,175.88
{Rupees In lacs)
As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
17.59 6,78 13.97
17.59 6.78 13.97
{Rupees in lacs)
Ag at As at As at

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

1 April, 2015

52B8.62 461.49 523.24
13.09 11.97 12.34

= 0.06 0.37
541.71 473.52 535,95

Note (a}:- Balances with banks held as margin money of Rupees in lacs 13.09 (31 March 2016: Rupees in lacs 11.97 and 1 April 2015: Rupees In lacs 12.34) are pledged against

bank guarantees and letter of credit issued by bankers on behalf of the Company,

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (NET)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) presented In the Balance Sheet:

Particulars

Deferred tax assets (net)
Minimum alternate tax credit

Total

The amaunt of the deferred tax assets recognised in the Balance Sheet for the year:

{Rupees in lacsh

Daferred tax {liabilities}/ assets in relation to:

As at As at Ag at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
401,32 = -
633.24 232.19 239,23
1.034.56 232.19 239,23
As at Recognised in  Recognised in As at

On difference betwaen book balance and tax balance of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Tax impact of expenses charged in the financial statements but allowable as deductions in
future years under income tax

Proviglon for doubtful debts and advances

Pravision for lease equalisations

Pravision for gratuity

Frovision for compensated absences

31 March, 2016 profit or loss other 31 March, 2017
comprehensive
income
6.53 6.53
53.50 53.50
173.33 - 173,33
52.16 - 52.16
60.97 9.56 F0.53
45.27 - 45.27
391.76 9.56 401,32

Defarrad tax asset (Net)
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NOTE 11:

{a)
(b)

{€)
(d)

NOTE 12:

NOTE 13:

(i)

Notes:
(3}

b}

(<)

OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (unsecured, considered good) (Rupees in lacs)

As at As at As at

Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

Capital advances 21.14% 32.27 1,471.34
Advance tax {net of provision for tax Rupees in lacs 1120.23, 31 March 1,331.60 1,704 .83 1,427.03
2016&: Rupees in lacs 469.44 and 1 April, 2015: Rupees in lacs 564.47)
Prepaid expenses 3.42 7.75 7.82
Deposit against cases with income tax authorities (refer Note 40) 311.00 - -
Total 1,667.12 1,744.85 2,906.19
INVENTORIES {lower of cost and net raallsable value) {refer note 3.6} {Rupees in lacs)
. As at As at As at
Particulars 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Reagents, chemicals and consumables {refer note {a) below) 687.02 636,53 648.45
Total £87.02 686.53 648.45

Note {a):

The Company’s business does not involve any conversion process for materials. Reagents and chemicals are used to conduct various
pathology and radiology tests and are consumed in the process, Other consumables reprasent varlous items of stores and spares used in
narmal course of business,

FINANCIAL ASSETS

TRADE RECEIVABLES
(Rupees in lacs)
As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

Particulars

Trade recelvables (refer note 42}

Secured. considered good 104.78 102.73 093.97
Unsecured. considered good 1.088.13 1.025.84 1.158.01
Doubtful 448.79 393.20 273.17
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts {expected credit loss allowance) (448.79) (393.20) (273.17}
Tatal 1.192.76 1.128.57 1.251.98

The average credit period on income from services 15 45 days. No interest is charged on the trade receivables for the amount overdue
above the credit period. There are no customers which represent more than 5% of the total balance of trade recelvables. The
concentration of credit risk is limited due to the fact that the customer base is large and unrelated.

The expeacted cradit loss model for recognition and measurement s derived based on risk of delays and default in collection.

The company has used a practical expedient by cornputing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on a provision
matrix. Management makes specific provision in cases where there are known specific risks of customer default in making the
repayments. The provision matrix takes into account historical credit loss experlence and adjusted for forward- looking information. The
expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days the receivables are due and the rates as given in the provision matrix,
The provision ratrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows,

Expected credit loss (%)

Ageing Ag at
31 March, 2017
0 -1 vear 0% - B3%
1 - 2 vear B83% - 99%
2 - 3 vear 95% - 100%
More than 3 years 9% - 100%
{Rupees In lacs)
N As at As at As at
AES o ESSRouIS 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015

0 -1 year 1,295.37 1,191.25 1,263.98
1- 2 vear 106.28 100.26 103.58
2 - 3 year 114.57 53.04 55.55
More than 3 vears 125.48 147.22 102.04

1.641.70 1,521.77 1,525.15
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(d}

NOTE 14:

fa)
{0
cl

NOTE 15:

fa)

NOTE 16:

fa)

{b)

el
{d)
e}

NOTE 17:

ovementn the expected credit lnss allowance

Particulars

Balance at beginning of the year
Mavement in credit loss allowance on trade receivables calculated ar

lifetime expected credit losses

Balance at end of the year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Balances with banks

- in current accounts

- in deposit accounts with oriainal maturity of three months or less
Cheaues on hand

{ash gn hand

Total

LOANS
fat amortised cost)

Particulars

Inter-corporate deposits {Unsecured)

- considered acod

- doubtful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful deposits

Total

DTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (unsecured)
fat amortised cost)

Particulars

Security deposits

- considered acod

- doubtful

Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful deposits
Advances recoverable tn cash

- considered aved

- doubtful

Less: Allowace for bad and doubtfu! advances
Unbilled revenue

Interest accrued on inter-corporate deposits
Intarest accruad on fixed deposits

Total

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS (unsecured. considered qood}

Particulars

Prepald expenses

Total

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Year ended

31 March, 2016

393.20 273.17
55.59 120,03
448.79 393.20

{Rupees in lacs}

As at
31 Maich, 2017

As at
31 March, 2016

As at
1 April, 2015

964.05 887.10 72649
- 300.00 200.00
2,55 0.22 0,42
4421 71.88 89,77
1.010.81 1,259.20 1,016.68
{Rupees in lacs}

As at As at As at

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

1 April, 2015

1,900.00 - .
29.50 29.50 29.50
129.500 (29.50) {29.50)
1,900.00 - -
{Rupees in [acs)
As at As at As at
201 1 il. 201
- 15,38 5.38
5.38 - -
15.38) = =
171.31 54,87 42.02
17,18 - .
{17.13) . 4
88.93 83.98 76.13
51.82 = -
- 0,07 0.23
312.06 154,30 123.76
{Rupees in facs}
As at As at As at

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

1 April, 2015

98.89

170.74

137.24

98_R9

170.74

137.24
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MNOTE 18:

HNOTE i9:

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL
Particulars As at As at As at

— 31 March, 2017 31 March. 2016 1 Agril. 2015

__ Number  (Rupees in lacs) (Rupees in lacs) Number (Rupees in lacs)
Authorised
5,000,000 equlty shares of Rs, 10 each with voting 5,000,000 500,00 5,000,000 500,00 5,000,000 500,00
rights
Total 5.000.000 500.00 5.000.000 500.00 5.000.000 500.00
Issued. subscribed and fullvy paid up shares 3.958.200 295.82 3,958,200 395.82 2,958.200 395,82
3,958,200 equity shares of RS, 10 sach with voting
rights
Total 3,958,200 395,82 3,958,200 395,82 3,958,200 395.82
{a) Reconciliation of the sh dina at the beainnina and at the end of the reporting period:

As at 31 March, 2017 As at 31 March, 2016
Nu 14 R 3 Number I la

Equity shares
Quistanding at the baginning of the year 3,958,200 395,82 3,958,200 395.82
Issued during the year - - - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 3,958,200 395.82 3,958,200 395.82

tb1 Terms / rlahts attached to equity shares

The Campany has only one class of 2quity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per shara, Each holder of equity sharas is entlitled to one wote per share, In the event of liquidation of the
Company, the holders of aquity shares will be entltled to recelve remamning assets of the Company, after distribution of all praferential ameunts. The distributlon will be in propertion to

the number of aquity shares held by the shareholdars.
(c) Details of Shares hetd by holding company:

Particulars

SRL Limited, the holding company (including its
nominges)
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each

OTHER EQUITY

Particulars

Retained Earninas

Balance as at the begloning of the year
Profit/ {loss) for the year

Othar comprahensiva income for the year, net of
income tax (refar note 44)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Balance as at the end of tha year

As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
ber of & % holding berof sh o holdi ber of sh % holding
held held nlel
3,958,200 100 3,958,200 100 3,958,200 100
{Rupees In lacs)
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017

31 March 20116

(5,062.49) (4,387.48)
3,011.34 1665.49
{18.06) {19.05)
2,993.28 {684.54)
(2,069.21) (5,072.02)
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NOTE 20:

a}

NOTE 21:

NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS {Rupees in lacs)
{at amortised cost)
. As at As at As at

Particulars

aree 31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Term loans
- from cther parties (Secured} - = 1,074.16
- from related party (Unsecured) 16,200.00 18,800.00 17.780.00
Total 16.200.00 18,800.00 18,854.16
Notes:

a. Term loans from other parties include:
- Term loan, having an outstanding balance of Rupees in lacs Nil as at 31 March 2017 (Rupees in lacs Nil as at 31 March 2016,

Rupees in lacs 70.17 as at 1 April 2015) which was taken from Slemens Limited and was secured by way of flrst charge on the
fixed asset, which were purchased against this loan. The loan carries interest @ 10.25%. The loan was repayable in 48 monthly
Instalments of Rupees in lacs 7.36 along with interest from the date of loan viz., 28 September 2011. The said loan was fully
repaid in September 2015,

- Term loan, having an outstanding balance of Rupees In lacs Nil as at 31 March 2017, {Rupees in lacs 15.33 as at 31 March
2016, Rupees in lacs 138.71 as at 1 April 2015) which was taken from Siemens Limited and is secured by way of first charge on
the fixed asset, which has been purchased against this loan. The ioan carries Interest @ 9.75%. The loan is repayable in 60
monthly installments of Rupees in lacs 10.95 along with interest from the date of loan viz., 21 June 2011. Balance outstanding
as at 31 March 2016 is payable in 12 months and hence shown as other current labilities is fully paid in the current year, (Refer
Note 263

- Term loan, having outstanding balance of Rupees in lacs Nil as at 31 March 2017, (Rupees in lacs Nil as at 31 March 2016,
Rupees In lacs 35.86 as at 01 April 2015) which was taken from Siemens Limited and was secured by way of first charge on the
flxed asset, which was purchased against this loan. The loan was carrying interest @ 9.75%. The loan was repayable In 60
monthly installments of Rupees in lacs 9.08 along with interest from the date of loan viz., 6 December 2010, The said lcan was
fully repaid In August 2015,

- Term Loan, having outstanding balance of Rupees in lacs Nil as at 31 March 2017 (Rupees In lacs Nil a5 at 31 March 2016 and
Rupees in lacs 2,117.65 as at 1 April 2015) which was taken from GE Money Financial Services Private Limited on 25 January
2012 with moratorium period of 12 months towards repayment of principal and carrled interest @ 11.92%. The loan was
repayable in 17 quarterly installments of Rupees in lacs 264.71 each after the moratorium period along with interest. The loan
was secured by hypothecation of fixed assets of the subsidiary company. The said loan was fully repald In July 2015,

b. Term loans from related party:

-Total Term Loan as at 31 March 2017 Rupees in lacs 17,200.00 {31 March 2016 Rupees [n lacs 19,300.00 and 1 April 2015
Rupees in lacs 18,280.00) from its holding company carrles interest @ 12% during FY 2016-17 and 13% during FY 2015-16 &
2014-15, Out of the total term loan balance outstanding as at 31 March 2017, Rupees In lacs 1,000.00 (Rupees in lacs 500.00
as at 31 March 2016, Rupees in lacs 500,00 as at 1 April 2015) repayable on demand to the holding Company and hence shown
as other current liabllities. {Refer Note 263

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES {Rupees in lacs)
{at amortised cost)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
Pavable on purchase of other intanaible assets 1,399.12 1,524.06 1,661.79

Total 1,399.12 1,524.06 1,661.79
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NOTE 22:

fad

NOTE 23:

{ad

NOTE 24:

NOTE 25:

NOTE 26:

(al
[{:}]
{c)
id

NOTE 27:

(a}
(b3

MOTE 28:

{a)
b
{c}

PROVISIONS

Particulars

Provision for aratulty (refer note 44)

Total

OTHER NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

Provision for lease equalisation
Total
CURRENT FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

BORROWINGS
{at amortised cost)

Particulars

Lecan repavable on demand (Secured)
- Cash credit facility from bank
Total

Note:

{Rupees in lacs)

As at As at As at
1 I 2
202.21 194.65 182.3%
203.81 194.65 182.39
{Rupees In lacs)
As at As at As at

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

1 April, 2015

132,82 160.34 181.09
132.82 160.34 181.00
(Rupees in facs)
As at As at As at

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

1 April, 2015

57.10

57.10

Cash credit facllity from a bank Is secured by way of first charge on the Company's entire current assets and a second charge on the
Cornpany's fixed assets, excluding specific equipments financed by others, both prasent and future. The cash credit facllity is repayable on

demand carrying interest @ 10.55% per annum,

TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars

Trade pavables (refer nate 46)
Taotal

OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITES

Particulars

Deposits from collection centres

Current maturities of lona-tarm borrowinas

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

Payabhle on purchase of plant and equipment and other intanalble assets
Total

PROVISIONS

Partlculars

Provision for compensated absences
Provision for ESIC (refer note below)
Total

Note:

{(Rupees in lacs)

As at
31 March, 2017

As at
31 March, 2016

As at
1 April, 2015

1,352.00 1.513.65 1,713.16
1,392.00 1,513.65 1,713.16
{Rupees In {acs)
As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 April, 2015
104.78 102.76 93.99
1.000.00 515.33 1.792.82
z - 4.50
333.73 404.87 372.59
1.443.51 1,022.96 2,263.90
{Rucees in lacs)
As at As at As at
31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016 1 aAprll, 2015
130.82 124.42 84.21
109,03 98.00 87.25
239.85 222,42 171.46

In previous years, the Company recelved a notice from Employees State Insurance Corporation (ESIC) towards coverage of the Employees
State Insurance Act, 1948 to the Company's lab in Kolkata. The Company has disputed the coverage and appealed before the ESL Court,
Kolkata, and West Bengal. Pending outcome of the hearing, the Company has provided an amount of Rupees in Jacs 109.03 {31 March
2016: Rupees in lacs 98.00 and 1 April 2015 Rupees in lacs §7.25) in the books of account.

OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars

Advance racelved
Provision for lease equalisation
Statutory ramittances

Total

{Rupees in lacs}

As at
31 March, 2017

As at
31 March, 2016

As at
1 Aptil, 2015

- . 120.00

17.89 7.06 16,39
164,60 198.67 547.69
1R82.49 205.73 G24.08
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NOTE 29;

NOTE 30:

(a)

(b}

()

NOTE 31:

{a)
(o)

[{+]

NOTE 32

fa)
(b}
{c}
(dy

REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars

Revenue from operations

Total

OTHER INCOME

Particulars

Interest income earned on assets that are not designated as at fair

value through profit or loss

- Bank deposits

- Inter-corporate deposit
- Income tax refund

- Others

Dividend lncome from equity investments
{Joint ventures - Jointly controlled entities)

Other non-operating income
- Profit on property, plant and equipment sold / discarded {net}
- Liabilities/ provisions no longer required written back
- Others

Total

COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
Particulars

[nventories as at the beqginning of the year
Add: Purchases durina the vear

Less: [nventories as at the end of the vear

Total

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Partlculars

Salaries and wages
Contribution te provident and other funds (refer note 44)

Gratuity expense {refer note 44)
Staff welfare expenses

Total
MNote:

{Rupees in lacs}

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Year ended
31 March, 2016

27,682.67 27,051.53
27,682.67 27,051.53
(Rupees in lacs}
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

52.89 64.18
148.12 =
78.57 36.35
3.65 3.92
150.00 100.00
29.34 12.77
117.38 23.23
130.07 108.99
710.02 349.94
{Rupees in lacs)
Year ended Year ended

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

686.53 648.45
5.654.01 E,533.52
6,340.54 5,181.97
687.02 686,93
5,653.52 5.495.44
{Rupees in lacs)
Year ended Yeaar ended

31 March, 2017

31 March, 2016

3,688.11 3,538.65
247.04 247.33
£64.00 62.16
231.70 194,10
4.230.85 4.042.24

a. During Previous year, Statutory bonus recorded as an exceptional item represents the amount accrued towards
incremental bonus payable to existing and deemed employees of the Company for the period from 1 April 2014 to 31
December 2015 due to enactment of 'The Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act, 2015" with retraspective effect from 1

April 2014, (refer note 36)
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NOTE 33: OTHER EXPENSES

(a)
(b}
fcy
(dl
(e}

()
{a)
{h
0]
{1}
(k)
th
{m)
]
(o)
(2]

Particulars

Power and fuel

Rent and hire charges {refer note 43)

Rates and taxes
Insurance

Repairs and maintenance:
- Plant and eguipment

- Building
- Others
Donations

Advertisement and sales promotion

Postage and courier

Travelling and conveyance
Printina and stationery

Communication

Leqal and professional expenses (refer note below)

Professional fees to doctors

Provision for doubtful debts and advances
Bad debts and advances written off

Miscellaneous expenses

Total

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Year ended
31 March, 2016

Note: Payment to the auditors comprise (net of service tax input credit):

Y For audit

ii} For taxation matters

i} For reimbursement of expenses

616,16 693.50
1,017.52 1.041.03
34.51 22.33
11.74 15.08
595.91 676.90
69.11 47.46
125.21 159.09
0.94 1.11
278.28 256.54
€9.16 61.73
417.69 400.73
442,57 £02.66
29.71 20.84
905.43 1.277.45
5.050.47 4,732.06
164,52 138.50
6.42 27.07
260.38 248.78
10,155.73 10,392.86
40.00 40.00
4.00 4.00
i.5¢ 3.67
45.50 47.67
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NOTE 34:

{a)
(b}

NOQTE 35:

{a)

(b}

NOTE 36:

(a)
(=]
(c)

NOTE 37:

{al
{b}
()

NOTE 38:

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION EXPENSE
Particulars

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment {refer note 5)
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note &)

Total

FINANCE COSTS
Particulars

Interast costs:

- term loans and cash credit facility
- loans from related party

- others

Bank charges

Total

EXCEPTIONAL ITEM

Particulars

Net ioss on sale of property, plant and equipment (refer note 5)
Amortisation of Goodwill and trademark {refer note 6)

Bonus (refar note 32)

Total

INCOME TAX RECOGNISED IN PROFIT OR LOSS
Particulars

Current tax
MAT credit entitlement of current year
Deferred tax {credit)/ charae for the vear

Toatal

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Year ended
31 March, 2016

1,252.36 2,602.50
837.42 860.39
2,085.78 3,462.89
{Rupees in lacs)
Year endad Year ended

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

30.70 73.84
2,209.64 2,546.54
180.02 196.63
63.07 59.09
2,483.43 2,876.10

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended
31 March, 2017

Year ended
321 March. 2016

331.16
700.66
66,52

1,098

{Rupees in lacs)

Year eanded

Year ended

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

707.84
{397.92)
{391.77)

(81.85)

The income tax expense for the vear can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Particulars

Profit/ (loss) bafore tax

Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2015-16: 34.608%)

Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit

Effect of incorne that is exempt from taxation
Disallowances under taxable profit
Effect of unused tax losses not recognised as deferred tax assets

Effect of previously unrecognised deductible temporary differences now

recnanised as defarred tax Assets
Total

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Particulars

Net profit for calculation of basic and diluted EPS

Weighted average number of equity shares in calculating basic and

diluterd EPS (Nos.)
Nominal value per share
Earninags per share {Basic and Diluted} (Rubees)

(Rupees |n lacs}

Year ended
21 March 2017
—rimea ot

Year ended

2,929.49

1.013.84
107.08

(62.07)

(790.08)
(350,80)

(665.49)

{82.03})

{Rupees in lacs)

Year ended

Year ended

31 March, 2017 31 March, 2016

3,011.34
39.58

10.00
76.08

{664.26)
39.58

10.00
(16.78)
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NOTE 39!

NOTE 40:

fal

bt
ich

NOTE 41:

NOTE 42:

A.

The Company has incurred lasses in the previous years ended 31 March 2015, The Company has accumulated losses of Rupees In lacs 2,069,04 as at the year-
end as against the equity of Rupaes in 1acs 395.82. However, the C y expects continued Imp d operations in tha future years. The Company { in the
business of providing pathology and radiclogy diagnostic services, The £ is d of continuing op and financial suppot from its holding
company SRL Limited. In view of the commitmant of continuad financial support by the shareholders and the expected financial results projected by the
management, the gccounts have been continued to be orepared ¢n & aolna concern basis.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Claims against the Company not acknowladaed as dabts (Ampunts in Rupeas In lacs}

As at Az at Ag at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 aneil 2015

Inceme tax
(i} Demand against 2nhancement of rcome due to disallowances on acoount
of expanditure

2,071.33 - E

The Compary has pald under protest Rupees in lacs 311.00 as at 31 March 2017 (31 March 2016: Nil and 1 Apnl 2015: Wi} shown under Note 11 of the
financial statements,

Besidas the contingant liablllties meantioned above, the Company has also received varlous other claims for consumer casss, labour cases and owil cases etc.,
the amount of which Is ot ascertainable.

In respect of above, future cash outflows in respack of the above matters are determinatile only on receipt of judgments / decisions pending at various forums
/ authorities,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts includina derivative contracts for which there were any material foreszeable losses,

There were no amounts which ware required to be Tad to the [ tor Educabion and Protection Fund by the Company.

COMMITMENTS {Amounts n Rupeas |n lacs)
As at As at As at
— 31 March 2017 31 Macch 2046 1 Ancdl 2015
(a) Commitments for the acqulsition of property, plant and equiprment 82.24 59.65 95.41

The Company has other commitments, for purchass/sales orders which are Issued after considering requirements per operating cycle for purchase / sale of
sarvices, employee’s benafits. The Company does not have any long term commitments or material non-cancellable contractual commitrnents/ contracts.
RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Ralated parties whare control axists

Nature of relatlonship
Halding company
Ultimate holding company

Hames of related parties
SPL Lirnited
Fortis Healthcare Limltad

Related parties under Ind AS 24 with whom transactions have taken place during the year:

Names of related parties Nature of relationship
DDRLC SRL Dlagnostics Private Limited Joint venture entity
Spectrum Yoyages Private Limlted {formerly known as Ligare Travels Pvt. L Fellow subsidiary company
Hiranandan| Healthcare Private Limited Fellow subsidhary company
Fortis Health Management (East) Limited Fellow subsidhary company
RHC Holding Prlvate Limited Fellow subsidiary cormpany
HealthFore Technologies Limited Fellow subsidiary company

Additiznal related parties as par Companies Act, 2013 with whom transactions have taken place during the year

Nature of relationship
Company Secretary

Names of related parties
{a) Lalt Yadav

Transactions with ralated parties during the year

Mature of transaction / Name of the related party

Rendering of sarvices:

Year endad

{Rupees In Lacs)

Year anded

{Rupees in Lacs)

(a) Fortis Health Management (East) Limited - 10,13

{b) SRL Limited 220,33 151,73

(£} DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limited 145,29 117.17
Recelving of services

{2) SRL Limlted 506,25 371.63

(b} DDRC SRL Diagnostics Private Limived Q.04 -

{c}  Spectrum Yoyages Private Limlted {formerly known as Ligare Travels Lim|ted) .80 11.04

(dY RHC Holding Frivate Lim|ted 4,97 50,38
R t of exp paid

(a) SRL Limited 74,48 46,78
Ralmt t of axp received

(a) SRAL Limited 34,72 14.84
Purchase of Intangibl ts under develop t

(a) HealthFore Technologies Limibed - 164.36
Loans taken during the year

(a) 3RL Limlted 1,500.00 1,650.00
Loans repaid during the year

(a) SPL Limited 3,600.00 B30.00
Loans rapaid during the year

(a) Fortts Healthcare Limlted 400,00
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NOTE 43:

Rent paid during the year
(2) Fortls Health Management (East) Limited . 5.34

Interest paid during the year
(a) SRL Limlted 2,209.64 2,546.54

Interest received during the year
(a2} Fortls Healthcare Limlted 24.83 -

al tlon to KMP
(a) Lallt Yadav - 6.4l

Mote; The remunaration to the key managerial personnel incdludes incentives and does not include the provisions made for gratuity and laave benefits, as they
are determined on an actuarial basis for the company as a whola,
[(Rupees in Lacs)

Balances of related parties As at A5 at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2018 1 April 2015

Qutstanding loan taken at year and included in short term and long term
borrowings
(a) SRL Limited 17,.200.00 19,300.00 15,260.00

Loans given to Related parties
{a) Fortis Healthcare Limitad 400.00 - -

Interest accrued on Inter-corporate deposits

(3} Fortls Healthcare Limlted 10.21 . *
Trade recelvables at the end of year:

(3} Hiranandam Healthcare Private Limitad - 0.17

(b} Fortis Health Management {East} Limited . - 4.70

{c} SRL Limited 53.30 38,55 26.76

(d) OORC SEL Magnostlcs Private Limited 10.99 8,88 10.93
Trade payables at tha and of year:

(a} SRL Limited 90.71 32.02 67.35

{b) Spectrum Voyages Prvate Limited {farmerly known as Ligare Travels 0.37 0,59 .48

Limited)
{c} Fortis Health Management (East} Limited . . .26

Qthar transactions

Loan of Rupaes in lacs Nil {31 March 2016; Rupeas in lacs Nil, 01 April 2015; Fupees in lacs 2,117.65) from a financial institution was guaranteed by
corporate quarantee of SRL Limited, the holding company.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENT

The Company has entered into commerdial lease arrangements mainly In respact of its office premises, labs/ centers. Thase leases, generally, have an
average life of batwaen eight to ten years with no renewal option included in the contracts. There are no restrictions placed upon the Company by entering
into thege leases.

The lease espense recognised during the year Rupess in lacs 1,017.52 {previous year Rupses In lacs 1,041,03} in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

As at Az at As at
16 1 April 2015
{Rupess In lacs} {Rupeas in lacs) {Rupees in lacs)
MNon-cancellable operating lease commitments
{a) Mat Jater than one yaar 223,23 246.69 J61.51
(b} Later than one year and not later than five ysars 563,40 767.56 959,44
{c) Later than five years 265,86 252.60 387.51

1,056,349 1.266.85 170878
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MNOTE 44: EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

fal

[{=3]

Drefingd contiibution olans

The Company makes Prosadent Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme contributions which are defined contribution plans, for quallfying employees. Under
the schemes, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs o fund the benefits, The Company recognised Rupees in lacs
210.01 (Year ended 31 March 2018: Rupeas in lacs 214.10) for Prosadent fund contrlbutions, Rupaes i lacs 37.03 (Year ended 31 March 201&; Rupees in lacs
33.23) for employes state insurance scheme conbributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable te these ptans by the Company are at
rates specified in the rules of the Schemes

Defined benefit plans

The Company s<ponsors funded defined benefit plans for qualifying employees, viz, gratuity, The scheme is funded with an insurance company in the form of
qualifying Insurance policy, Every employes who has completed at least five yaars of service gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days of last drawn salary for each
completad year of service subject to 3 maximum of Rupees 1,000,000 in terms of Provisions of Gratuity Act, 1672

These plans tymicalty expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment nsk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary nisk

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caloulated using a dizcount rate which |s determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds,

Interest risk & decrease in the bond Interast rate will Increasa the plan hatibty; howewer, this will b2 partially offset by an increase
in the return on the plan's debt Instruments,

Langevity nisk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference o the best estimate of the mortality of
plan partidpants both during and after their employment, An increase in the hfe expectancy of tha plan participants

will increase the plan's liability,

Sakary risk The present value of the defined bensfit plan liability is calculated by reference to the fulure salaries of plan
participants. Az such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's lkability.

In respect of the plan, the most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31
March 2017 by the Fellow of the Lnstitute of Actuaries of Indla, Ms. N. Seethakumarl. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related current
sarace cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

The principal assumptlons used for the purposes of the actuarial assumptions were as follows:

Valuation as at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
Discount rate 6.66% 7.58% 7.81% p.a,
Expected rate of salary increase 5.50% 6.50% 6,50%
Longewity (Mortalty} rate Indian Assured Indian Assured Indan Assured
Lives Mortality Llvas Martallty Livas Mortallty
{2006-08} Ulimate (2006-0£) Ultimate {2006-08)
TEmaks
Emploves attrition rata:
- Upto 30 years 33% o.a. 33% p.a. 2% p.a.
- 31-40 years 15% p.3, - -
- 31-45 years - 15% 0.3, 2% p.a.
- 40 years and above 6% D.3. - -
- 45 yvears and above - 6% p.a, 2% p.a.

The amounts recognised in the Statement of profit and (055 In respact of the defined beneflt plan are as follows:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rupees in Lacs) (Rupees in
Lacs)
Service cost:
Current service cost €4.00 62,16
Net Interest expanse 9.72 10,95
Components of defined beneflt costs recognised in profit or loss 73.72 73.11
Remeasurement on the net definad benafit iabliity:
- Return on plan assets (excluding amounis included in net interest expense]) (21.93) 270
- Actuarlal (galns)/ losses anising from changes In demographic assumptions - {3,37)
- Actuarial (gains)/ losses arising from changes In financial assumptions 21.684 6,35
- Actuarlal gains or kesses arising from experience adjustments 27,71 3.65
Components of deflned benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 27.62 9.53
Taotal 101,35 B2.64

The current servica cost and the nat interest expensa for the year are inciuded in the 'Emploves benefits expense’ and ‘Finance costs' line [tem respactively in tha
Statement of profit and {es5. The remeasurement of the net defined bensfit liability is included in other comprahensive Income,

The amount included in the Batance Sheet ansing from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined bensfit plans & as follows:

As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 1 April 2015
{Rupees In Lacs) [Rupees In Lacs) {Rupees in
Laeat
Prasent value of funded defined banefit obligation 473,07 41%.98 385.23
Fair value of plan assets (269.26) (225.33) _ {202 B4)
Funded status 203.81 194.65 182,39
Effect of the asset ceiling = - =)
Net liability arising from defined benefit sbligation 203.61 194,65 182.39

2 Charlered

<
%
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Movement in the present value of the defined benent obligation are as follows:

Year ended
31 March 2017

Year ended

31 March 2016

Qpening defined benefil obligation 419 98 385 23
Current service €ost &4 00 6216
Interest cost 28 46 27 67
Remeasurement {oainsl/ losses
- Actuanal aalns and losses arising from chanoes in demoarsohic assumotions (3.37%
- Actvarial oains and losses arising from chanaes in financial assumptions, 21 84 635
- Actvanal 3alns and losses arisng from exoenence adiustments 2771 385
Benefit payments
- Benefit payments from plan (6 B2) {5 30}
- Benefit payments from emplover {82 10} {56 61}
Clesing defined benefit obligation 473.07 419.93
Movemant in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
Opemng falr value of plan agsels 22533 20284
Interest income 18.75 1672
Return on plan assets {excluding interest income) 21.93 (270}
Contributions from the employer ; 2
- Contribubions from the employer 10,08 13.78
- Direct benefit payments from employer 8z.10 56.61
Berefil payments from plan assats [&.862) (5.30)
Beneafit payments from employer (82 10} {5661}
Closing fair value of plan assets 263.26 225,33

The plan assets of the Company 25 on the Balance sheet date are fully invested in Insurer Managed Funds. The detaiks of investments maintained by LIC are not

made availatle to the Company and therefore has not been disclosad

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and attrition rate. The sensitivity
analysis below have besn determaned based on reasonably possibke changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while

holding all other assumptions constant

As at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016
(Rupees in Lacs) (Rupees in

1arsh
If the: discount rate is 100 basis oolnts higher 442.04 394.25
1f the discount rate is 100 basis ooints lower 08 52 449.22
1f the expected salary arowth increases by 1% 504,44 446.05
1f the expected salary growth decreases by 1% 444 90 39652
If atlrition rate increases by 1% 47296 421.35
If attrition rate decreases by 1% 47309 418.33

The sensltivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the dafined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptlons would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated, Furthermaore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the
present value of the defined peneflt abllgabion has been calculated using the prajected wnlt credit method at the end of reporting perlod, which s the same as that

applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation lability recognised In the Balance Sheet

There was no change In the methods and assumptions usad in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior vears,

The Company expects to make a contribubion of Rupees in lacs 117,65 (31 March 2016 Rupees in lacs 113.78) to the defined benefit plans durlng the next

The defined benefit plans shall mature after vear end 31 March 2017 as follows:

{Rupees in lagsh

Expectad total benefits Defined benefit gblination
As at 31 March 2018 71,58
As at 31 March 2019 58.03
As ak 31 March 2020 45.82
As at 31 March 2021 3544
Az at 31 March 2022 44,07
Thereafter 141.55

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation as at 31 March 2017 is 5 years {31 March 2016: 5 years),

The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes Into account tha inflatlon, senlority, promotion and othar rekevant factors,

Experience adiustments
Az at As at

31 March 2017 31 March 2016

Experience adiustments on actuanal faan)/ loss 7N 3.85




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

NOTE 45; FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

45.1

n
45.2

45.3

Capital management

The Company manages its capital to ensure that Company will be able to continue as geoing concerns from its parent Company, SRL Limited. The source of capltal In the
Company is through its parent. Also the lang-term borrowing Is from Its parent Company which carries rate of interest @ 12% p.a, which is considered to be on arm lengthe
basis. The Capital structure of the Company consists of net debt (borrowings as detailed in notes 20, 24 and offset by cash and cash equivalents) and total equity of the
Company. The Company managas its capital structure and makes adjustrnents In the light of changes in 2conemic envirgniment and the requirements of the financial
covenants.,

The Company |s not subiect to anv externally imposed capital reauirements,

"The Company reviews the capital structure of the Company on perlodic basis, As part of this review, the Company considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. The gearing ratio is determined as the proportion of net dabt to total equity.

The aearina ratic at end of the reportina perlod was as follows: (Rupees in Lacs)
As at As at As at
31 March. 2017 31 March. 2016 1 Anvil 2015
Debt (i 16.200.00 18.857.10 18.854.16
Cash and cash equivalents {note 14) (1,010.81% (1,259.20) {(1.016.68)
Net debt 15,189.19 17,597.90 17,837.48
Total equity 395.82 395.82 395.82
Net debt to equity ratio 3837.40% 4445.94% 4506.46%

Deabt is defined as lona-term and short-term borrowinas,

Cateqories of financial Instruments {Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars As at Ag at As at
31 March J017 31 Macch 2016 1 ancil 2015

Financial assats

Measured at amortised cost

Cash ang cash equivalents 1,010.81 1,259.20 1,016.68
Loans 1,217.59 6.78 13.97
Trade receivables 1,192.76 1,128.57 1,251.98
COther financlal assers - nen-current 541.71 473.52 535.85
Other financlal assets - current 312.06 154.30 123.76
Measured at fair value through oroflt or loss (FYTPL)

Investmeants in 1o/nt ventures 1,175.98 1,175.88 1,175.28
Total 6.150.81 4,198.25 4,118.22

Financial llabillties

Measured at amortised cost

Trade pavables 1,392.00 1,513.65 1,713.16
Qther financlal liabilitles 2,842.63 2,547.02 3,925.69
Borrowinas 15,200.00 18,857,10 18,854.16
Total 20,434.563 22.917.77 24,493.01
Fi jal risk t abjectives

The Company manages the financial risks rzlating to the operations of the Company through internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks.
These risks include market risk {including interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and Itquidity risk.

The Company does not enter Into or trade financial Instruments including derivative financial instruments, for speculation purposes.

Interest rate risk management

The Company is exposed to interest rate risk because the Company borrew funds at both fixed andg floating interest rates. The risk is managed by the Company by maintaining
an appropriate mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. As on 31 March 2017, the Company does not bave any borrowings other than cash credit facilities, the interast
rate fluctuation is very insignificant to the size and operatlons of the Company, therefore, a change In interest rate risk does not have a material impact on the Company’s
financial statemants in relation to fair value of financlal instruments.

Credlt rlsk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Cormpany. The Cormpany has adopted a policy of only
dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient coliateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, The Company does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements to cover its credit risks assoglated with its
financial assets.




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has established an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the management of the Company's short-term, medium-term and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financia! assets and liabilitles.

The fellowing tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods.
The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilitles based on the earliest date on which the Company can be
required to pay. The tables Include beth interest and principal cash flows, To the extent that interest ¢ash flows are floating rate, the undiscounted
amount is derived from interest rate curves at the end of the reporting period.

{Rupees in Lacs)

Particulars 0-1 year 1-2 years More than 2  Total Amount Carrying Amount
years

31 March, 2017

Non-interast bearing 1.496.78 - - 1,496.78 1,496.78

Fixed interest rate instruments 1,448.09 20,649.37 1,640.45 23,737.91 18,937.85

Vfariable interest rate instruments - - = = -

31 March, 2016

Non-interest bearing 1,616.41 - - 1,616.41 1,616.41

Fixed interest rate instruments 900.66 21,280.49 1,968.54 24,149.69 21,244.28

Variable interest rate Instruments 63.12 - - 63,12 57.10

1 April, 2015

Non-Interest bearing 1,807.15 - - 1,807.15 1,807.15

Fixed interest rate instruments 2,189.97 21,659.13 2,296.63 26,145.73 22,685.86

Variable interest rate instruments - -
The Company expects to meet its other obligations from operating cash flows and proceeds of maturing financial assets.

Market risk is the risk of loss of future earnings, risk of loss due to change in Interest rates, fair values or future cash flows that may result from a
change in the price of financial instrument., The value of a financial instrument may change as a result of changes In the interest rates, foreign
currancy exchange rates, and other market changes that affect market risk sensitive instruments.

The Company's exposure Lo credlt risk Is Influended mainly by the individual charterstics and credit worthiness of each customer,

Market Risk Factor
Market risk is attributable to all market risk sensitlve financlal instruments including investments and deposits, foreign curreny receivables or

payables. The company operates a small segment of his business In international market and consequently is exposed to forelgn exchange risk
through it's sales and services and purchases from overseas suppliers in various foreign currencies.




SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

NOTE 46:

NOTE 47:

DISCLOSURES REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES DEVELOPMENT ACT, 2006

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2017 31 March 2016 31 March 2015
(Rupees in Lacs) {Rupees in Lacs) (Rupees in Lacs}
Principal amount remaining unpakl to any supplier as at the end of the accounting year 1.15 4,59 -
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplier as at the end of the accounting vear - 0.00 -

The amount of interest pald aleng with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier - - -
beyond the appointed day

The amount oftinterest due and payable for the year 019 0.33 -
Tha amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the accounting veéar .19 0.33 -

The amount of further Interest dug and payable even in the succeeding year, untll such date - - -
when the interest dues as above are actually pald

[ues bo Micro and Smiall Enterprizses have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of Inforrnation collected by the
Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors,

Tha details of Specified Bank Notes {SBN) held and transacted during the period from 8 November, 2016 to 30 December, 2016 as
provided below:

Particulars Specified Bank Other Denomination Total
Notes Notes

Clasing cash in hand as on 8 November 2016 78.26 5.97 £4.23
{+} Non- Permitted receipts {refer note below) 68.23 - £68.23
(+) Permitted receipts 65.51 1,5%4.82 1,660.33
() Permitted payments {1.14) {69.84) (70.97)
{-) Amount deposited in Banks (210.86) {1,480.34) (1,691.20)
Closing cash in hand as on 30 Dacembar 2016 - 50,62 50.62

Note: Management {5 of the view that as per Notification no. RBI/2016-17/112, DCM (PLG) No. 1226/10.27.00/2016-17 dated 08 November 2016 issued by
Government of India for the period 8 Movember 2016 to 14 November 2016, SBNs were permissible to be received In government hospitals and accordingly in
labioratories in those hospitals alse. Since, the medical services ware considerad to be critical for personal care, Management allowed the laboratories in private
hospitals also to receive SBNg during the said period,
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SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH, 2017

NOTE 49:

NOTE 50:

NOTE 51:

First-time adoption of Ind-AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2017, are the first the Group has prepared |n accordance with [nd-AS. For perlods up to and
including the year ended 31 March 2016, the Group prepared Jts financial statements in accordance with statutory reporting requirament n India
immedlately before adopting Ind AS ("previous GAAP).

Accordingly, the company has prepared flnanclal statements which comply with Ind-AS applicable for year ending 31 March 2017, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016, as described in the summary of significant accounting palicies. In prepaning these
financial statements, the Company's opening balance sheet was prepared as 1 April 2015, the Company's date of transition to 1nd-AS. Note 48 explains the
principal adjustments made by the company in restating its Indian GAAF financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 Aprll 2015 and the
financtal statemeants as at and for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassifled, where necessary, ko conform to current year's classification.

The comparative financial information of the Company for the transition date opening balance sheet as at 1 April 2015 included in these Ind AS financial
statements, are based on the statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 audited by
the predecessor auditor whose repart for the year ended 31 March 2015 dated 25 May 2015 expressed an unmodified opinfon on those standalene financial
statements, and have been restated to comply with Ind AS. Adjustments made to the previously issued said financial information prepared in accordance
with the Companies {Accounting Standards} Rules, 2006 to comply with Ind AS have been audited by us,

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SRL DIAGNOSTICS PRIVATE LIMITED

Sawdol,

KALYANA SUNDARAM SRIVASTAVA ARINDAM I-IA‘LDJ\R
Director Director

DIW: 07322325 DIN: 07714950
Guruaram

20 May, 2017




